SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 18, 2010
5:08 p.m
5:08:38 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 5:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny QO son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUMVARY

SB 230- BUDGET: CAPI TAL, SUPP. & OTHER APPROPS

SB 253- APPROP: DEFERRED NMAI NTENANCE/ REPLACEMENT

#sb230

#sb253

SENATE BILL NO 230

“"An Act nmmking and anending appropriations, including

capital appropriations, supplenental appropriations, and
ot her appropriations; mnmaking appropriations to capitalize
funds; and providing for an effective date.”

Senat e Fi nance Committee 1 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



SENATE BILL NO 253

"An  Act making capital appropriations for deferred
mai nt enance projects, equipnent replacenent, and energency
repairs; and providing for an effective date."

5:10: 52 PM

~David Ongley, President of Alaska Library Association,
Barrow testified in support of public library construction
maj or expansion matching grant program He supported the
request of $14.25 million for the program He spoke to the
many benefits of libraries.

5:13: 20 PM

~Fred Parady, Chief Operating Oficer North Slope Borough
School District, Barrow { testified in support of funding
for school construction and mai nt enance projects.

5:15: 20 PM

~Lee M Foley, Bethel City Manager{ testified in support of
the Denali Conm ssion Federal/State Partnership. He hoped
that projects for Bethel would remain in the budget and
receive the upnost consideration as they nove through the
| egi sl ati ve process.

5:16:47 PM

~Eric Mddl ebrook, Vice Mayor of Bethel{ testified in
support of public safety projects for Bethel and the
surroundi ng area.

5:18: 29 PM

~M ke Jenkins, Gakona Comunity Fire Chief{ testified in
support of projects submitted for the Gakona volunteer fire
department for a total of $250 thousand to construct a
training center and community building. He supported the
upgrade of the community's fire trucks. He spoke in support
of a capital grant to replace the roof on the senior
center.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 2 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



5:21:22 PM

~Keith Zanudio, Cordova School District{ testified in
support of the $5 million proposed for inclusion on behalf
of the consortium of digital Ilearning. He supported the
funding expansion to $10 million for the digital |earning
program

5:23:49 PM

~BEd Zastrow, Ketchikan, Vice President Ketchikan Senior
Citizen Services{ testified in support of a state grant of
$300 thousand to assist in the conpletion of the access
road to the senior housing conpl ex.

5:26: 00 PM

~Ti not hy Rooney, Manager, City and Borough of Wangell{
testified in support of upgrades to the cruise ship dock in
W angel | . The upgrades are vital to the economc
sustainability of the community.

5:26:44 PM

~John Stein, Executive Director, Sitka Sound Science
Center{ testified in support of funding to open the
hat chery training facility.

5:29:16 PM

~Jeff Tucker, President, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association{
testified in support of a training program for |and based
fire fighting training progranms. He spoke in support of the
Al aska Fire Conf er ence in Fai r banks whi ch trains
firefighters throughout the state and will help support the
training programfor 400 firefighters.

5:30: 55 PM

~Dr. Alex Hills, Alaska Hills Association{ commented on the
proposed engineering building for the University of Al aska
Anchorage. He pointed out the difficulty recruiting new
engineers due to the issue of the space scarcity. The
School of Engineering dramatically increased enrollnents
and prograns and are all accredited.

5:33: 09 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 3 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Don  Kashevarof f, CEO Alaska Native Tribal Heal t h
Consortiun{ testified in support of constructing a |ong
term care facility, which would ultimtely save state
Medi cai d dol | ars.

5:35:52 PM

~Paul Brown, North Pole Econom c Devel opnent Corporation,
North Pole{ testified in support of the waste water
treatment plant in North Pole. He noted that the city
i nfrastructure required upgrades.

~Si neon Swet zof Jr., Mayor, Gty of St. Paul{ testified in
support of the St. Paul harbor project. He noted that the
main industry of the island includes the Bering Sea. The
| ocal sponsor worked in the Federal Governnent to construct
a harbor.

5:40: 18 PM

~David Boggs, Morganthaler Conpany, Principal Engineer,
Anchorage{ testified in support of the University's
engi neering center. He opined that the existing facility at
UAA i s substandard. The program has grown and he supports a
new bui | di ng.

5:42:39 PM

~John Aho, self, Anchorage{ testified in support of the
engi neering facility for the University of Anchorage. He
stated that the class and office spaces are inadequate.

5:44:09 PM

~Jenni fer Beckman, Executive Director, Central Area Rural
Transit System Kenai{ testified in support of funding for
public transportation. The funds would provide long term
stability for the inportant public transit system

5:45:45 PM

~Davi s Levy, Di rector, Alaska Building Corporation{
testified in support of a community and public
transportation partnership that would provide capital and
operating funds for public and comrunity transportation
systens throughout the state.

5:46: 34 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 4 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Jim Dodson, Econom c Devel opnent President, Anchorage{
testified in support of funding for the rail and vehicle
bri dge across the Tanana Ri ver.

5:48:42 PM

~LaMarr Ander son, Interim Executive Director, Mat Su
Community Transit{ testified in support of the request for
$3 million in funding for public transportation capital and
operating match fund program

5:51:30 PM

~Lee Ryan, Board Menber for Arctic Wnter Ganes{ testified
in support of the Alaska Wnter Ganes Team Al aska grant in
t he budget.

5:52:45 PM

~Ron Gher man, Executive Di rector of | nstructiona
Technol ogy, Fairbanks North Star Borough School District{
testified in support of funding for digital education.

5:54:19 PM

~Jai me Stack, Superintendent Pribilof School District, St.
Paul Island{ testified on behalf of SB 230. She spoke in
support of funding an expanded major nmaintenance list for
projects in the St. Paul school district. One project is a
sprinkler systemin the St. Paul school.

5:55: 53 PM

~Kenneth  Ander son, Pr esi dent, Pal mer Seni or Cent er {
testified in support of the Palnmer senior center in Palner.
He stressed the need for a larger and safer center for
seniors in the Pal mer area.

5:57:40 PM

~Tim Swezey, President, Meadow Lakes{ testified in support
of the onetinme grant for a conmunity sports field in Meadow
Lakes. He noted that current recreational capabilities
require travel out of town.

5:58: 33 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 5 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Karen Nugen-Logan, Executive Director, Al aska Addiction
Rehabilitation Services, Nugen's Ranch, Wsilla{ testified
in support of $500 thousand from the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities to relocate the
facility. She noted that the funding wll help secure
funding from ot her sources.

6: 00: 05 PM

~Julie Starr, Meadow Lakes{ testified in support of a
recreation center for Meadow Lakes community. Soccer and
softball fields allow safe participation in sports.

6: 00: 56 PM

~Donnita Burks, Meadow Lakes Community Council{ testified
in support of the recreation center in Madow Lakes. She
added that the Meadow Lakes community council is asking for
the help as it supports the long term conmtnment to the
comunity's youth and their famlies.

6:01:42 PM

~Dave Hanson, Econom c¢ Devel opnent Director, MatSu Borough{
testified in support of the conbined community |library,
auditorium and paranedics classroom addition project at
the MatSu college. He expressed support of funding for the
third phase of the Alaska rail extension from the Al aska
Rail road mainline to Port MHKensie.

6: 03: 22 PM

~St ephen Price, Yukon River Inter-Tribal Wtershed Council{
testified in support of funding for the purchase of a
flatbed truck and a pickup truck to increase the capacity
and efficiency of the Yukon River Inter-Tribal Witershed
Counci | .

6: 05: 24 PM

~Steve Crouch, Deputy Fire Chief, North Star Volunteer Fire
Departnment, Fairbanks{ testified in support of a grant
request for a new fire engine for the North Star Vol unteer
Fire Departnent.

6: 06: 22 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 6 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Tracy  Antonovi ch, Vice President, Al aska  Addiction
Rehabilitation Services/Nugen's Ranch{ testified in support
of funding for the facility's |l ocation change. She spoke to
the necessity of the $500 thousand to help |everage the
addi tional funding needed to nove when the state takes the
current | ocation.

6:07:41 PM

~Kat hy Mayo, Morris Thonpson and Cultural Visitors Center
Fai rbanks{ testified in support of funding for the Morris
Thonpson Cultural Center project. These funds wll be used
to conpl ete the exhibits.

6: 08: 56 PM

~Bob Howard, self, Fairbanks{ requested |linmted support for
the comunity and economc developnent facility which
serves seniors in the Fairbanks area known as the Raven
Landi ng Seni or Community.

6:10: 34 PM

~Shawna Hi | derbrand, college student, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks{ testified in support of the Chena snmall track
si dewal k proj ect.

6:11:24 PM

~Mary Binkley, self, Fairbanks{ testified on behalf of the
Raven Landing Housing Project to help conplete the
comunity hall.

6:12: 04 PM

~Jeff Jacobson, Chief of Staff, North Star Fairbanks
Borough{ spoke in support of five separate requests. The
requests include Tanana River training, the Carlson
Activity Center Phase Two, Town Lakes recreation area,
regional library roof project, and road service area
f undi ng.

6:13: 35 PM

~Lidan Setterberg, Executive Director, Joel's Place Youth
Center{ spoke in support of funding for special projects
for the Joel's Place Youth Center.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 7 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



6:14: 31 PM

~Nat sha Ruppert, Wodriver PTA, Fairbanks{ stressed the
need for funding to bus of small children in her area.

6:15:59 PM

~Ron 1 nouye, Senior Community Center, Fairbanks{ testified
in support of funding projects to support seniors.

6:17:52 PM

~Mary Richards, Al Season Inn, Fairbanks{ referred to the
Cultural Center and the $500,000 needed to finish the
exhibit.

6:19: 03 PM

~Sandy Jami eson, Fairbanks{ observed that he has worked on
a project to restore a |og house in Fairbanks funded by the
Rotary C ub.

6: 20: 20 PM

~Bill Butler, Gty of North Pole{ testified in support of
wat er and sewer projects for the Interior region of Al aska.
He noted the focus of waste water treatnent plants.

6:21: 26 PM

~Karen Parr, Fairbanks{ testified in support of a senior
center and services in the Fairbanks area.

~Nancy Jones, Fairbanks{ testified in support of a senior
center with services.

6:22:44 PM

~Ci ndy Schunaker, Fai r banks, Morris  Thonpson Center/{
testified in support of funding for conpletion of the
exhi bit known as the gateway in the Murris Thonpson Center.

6:24: 30 PM

~Jack W | bur, Pr esi dent, Desi gn Al aska, Fai r banks{
testified in support of the Life Sciences Facility in
Anchor age, t he Uni versity of Fai r banks engi neering

Senat e Fi nance Committee 8 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



facility, and the deferred nmaintenance projects in the
governors amended budget.

6: 26: 56 PM

~David Leone, Public Transportation Manager, Fairbanks{
testified in support of public transit in Fairbanks. Denmand
for service outweighs ability. The proposed funding
addresses/ /.

6: 28: 08 PM

~Deb Hi ckok, Fairbanks Visitor Bureau{ testified in support
of funding for the Mdrris Thonpson Center. She conmented on
the services provided by the center. She testified in
support of the visitors // program

6: 29: 27 PM

~Jeffrey Mann, Wodriver Elenentary{ testified in support
of funding for safe passage for the Chena Small Tracts
Si dewal k.

6:31:24 PM

~Billy Brown, Fairbanks{ testified in support of University
of Fairbanks Life Sciences Building and the deferred
mai nt enance cost in the governors capital budget.

6:32:45 PM

~Edith Hildebrand, Fairbanks{ testified in support of the
Chena Small Tracts Sidewal k. The sidewal k woul d enhance the
safety of travel for residents.

6:34: 04 PM

~Any  Cei ger, Community  Devel opnent Di rector Downt own
Associ ation, Fairbanks{ testified in support of the Mrris
Thonpson Center and the sign in system for visitors seeking
navi gati on around Fai r banks.

6: 35: 48 PM

~Ron D xon, Chair, Tanana Valley Canpus, Fai r banks{
testified in favor of the renovation project on the Canpus
center at UAF.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 9 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



6:37: 14 PM

~Anna Ransburgh, self, Fairbanks{ testified in favor of the
Life Sciences Building in Anchorage. She noted that the
condition of the current buildings hanpers | earning.

6: 38:44 PM

~Jon Zasada, Anchorage Nei ghborhood Health Center{ spoke in
support of the Life Sciences Building in Anchorage. He
explained that the health center currently accepts new
Medi caid patients. He noted that the center did not receive
federal funding for the project.

6:40: 54 PM

~Lora Renbold, Eagle River{ testified in support of
bl eachers for Eagle River high school which has to conpete
with | arger schools in Anchorage for funding.

6:43: 07 PM

~Rob Jordan, Alaska Craftsman Hone Program Anchorage{
testified support for consuner based education for AHFC and
t he energy rebate program

6:44: 43 PM

~Hol Iy Norwood, N kiski, Apex Wnd Energy{ testified in
support of hardware for the Kenai w nd project. A physica
barrier stands in the way of progress.

6:47:21 PM

~Leslie Simons, UAA School of Engineering{ testified in
support of the UAA school of Engineering. She spoke of the
benefits of the school of engineering.

6:48: 26 PM

~Al ex Bergeron, Anchorage, UAA School of Engineering{
testified in support of funding for the UAA School of
Engi neeri ng.

6:49: 33 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 10 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Tessa Kar a, Anchor age, UAA  School of Engi neeri ng{
testified in support of the UAA School of Engineering. She
noted the value of the investnent for the state.

6: 50: 45 PM

~John  Fi sher, Anchor age, UAA  School of Engi neeri ng{
testified in support of the UAA school of Engineering. He
poi nted out the increased need for engineers in Al aska.

6: 52: 00 PM

~Cheyenne Al abanzas, UAA School of Engineering{ testified
in support of the UAA school of engineering. She spoke of
the chall enges of learning in the current facility.

6:53:18 PM

~Jody Karcz, Department of Transportation and Public
Facilities, Anchorage{ testified in support of statew de
funding for public transit. She spoke of the many benefits
of public transportation.

6: 55: 24 PM

~Marilyn Kasmar, AK Primary Care{ testified for the
facility renovation repair and equipnent for the health
facility. The request will benefit the sites providing//.

~Cheryl Bobo, Anchorage{ testified in support of //.

6:59:31 PM

~Tom Dal rynpl e, Kenai Peni nsul a Col | ege, Sol dat na{
testified in support of the //.

7: 00: 04 PM

~Nancy St. John-Sm th, Peninsula Community Health Services{
supports capital noney for $308 thousand natched wth
funding from ot her sources.

7:01: 42 PM

~Buzz Ois, Executive Director, North Pole{ testified in
support of the funding for the sewer and water project in
North Pole. He pointed out the positive inpact for the

Senat e Fi nance Committee 11 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



state. He noted support of the Life Sciences building at
UAF.

7:03:49 PM

~Jay Nulfe, Mat Su  borough{ testified 1in support of
replacing the rail extension for the WMatSu borough. She
noted that the construction of the rail extension. She
noted the benefit for the community.

7: 06: 03 PM

~Carl Rose, Al aska Association of School Boards{ testified
in support of alternative funding sources such as a general

obligation bond to neet the needs of schools across the
st at e. It's been eight years since +the passge of
Proposition 8, when the state of Alaska invested in rura

school construction. There is currently $800 nillion in
maj or mai ntenance and constructi on needs. The grant program
has not been able to neet the needs of the state. He spoke
in support of the debt reinbursenent, but stressed that
mai nt enance and repl acenent needs nust be expanded.

7:09: 53 PM

~Andy Story, Menber, Juneau School Board{ recognized the
i ncreases in education funding, but enphasized the need for
mai nt enance funding. She observed that $24 nillion in

mai nt enance funding will not go far when sone schools need
as much as $14 nillion. She enphasized the need to support
digital learning. She stressed successes in the Juneau

alternative high school

7:12:54 PM

~Eric Mohrmann, Fire Chief, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association{
spoke in support of fire fighting equi pment.

7:14:16 PM

~Ed Page, Executive Director, Mrine Exchange of Al aska{
testified in support of first response energency and search
equi pnrent and felt that the <cruise tax would be an
appropriate fundi ng source.

7:17:21 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 12 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



~Darrol |l Hargraves, Wasilla{ spoke in support of the Nenana
School District and expansion of the nmjor naintenance

school 1i st.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 7:18 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 13 03/18/10 5:08 P. M



